
MEETING: CABINET

DATE: Thursday 4th March, 2021

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: Remote

DECISION MAKER: CABINET

Councillor Maher (Chair)
Councillor Atkinson
Councillor Cummins
Councillor Fairclough
Councillor Hardy
Councillor John Joseph Kelly
Councillor Lappin
Councillor Moncur
Councillor Veidman

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Ruth Harrison
Democratic Services Manager

Telephone: 0151 934 2042
E-mail: ruth.harrison@sefton.gov.uk

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: -
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



A G E N D A
Items marked with an * involve key decisions

Item 
No.

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected

 
 1 Apologies for Absence

 2 Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 
interest arises, which is not already included in 
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare 
any interests that relate to an item on the 
agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room by switching their camera 
and microphone off during the whole 
consideration of any item of business in which 
he/she has an interest, except where he/she is 
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest 
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer or staff member representing the 
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting 
room, including from the public gallery, during 
the whole consideration of any item of business 
in which he/she has an interest or whether the 
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in 
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

 3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 
14)

Minutes of the meeting held on 11 February 
2021.

* 4 Domiciliary Care Contracts All Wards (Pages 15 - 
22)

Report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Care and Health.

* 5 Savio Salesian College - Approval of Legal 
Documentation for Academy Conversion

All Wards (Pages 23 - 
28)

Report of the Interim Head of Education.



* 6 Afghan MOD Scheme All Wards (Pages 29 - 
34)

Report of the Head of Communities.

* 7 New Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation 
Duty

All Wards (Pages 35 - 
42)

Report of the Head of Communities.

* 8 Financial Management 2020/21 to 2023/24 
and Framework for Change 2020 - Revenue 
and Capital Budget Update 2020/21 
including the Financial Impact of COVID-19 
on the 2020/21 Budget - March Update

All Wards (Pages 43 - 
62)

Report of the Executive Director of Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services.



THE “CALL IN” PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON 
TUESDAY 23 FEBRUARY 2021.  MINUTE NO 104 IS NOT SUBJECT TO 
“CALL-IN.”

89

CABINET

MEETING HELD AT THE REMOTE
ON THURSDAY 11TH FEBRUARY, 2021

PRESENT:

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillor Fairclough (in the Chair)

Councillors Atkinson, Cummins, Hardy, 
John Joseph Kelly, Lappin, Moncur and Veidman

Councillor Sir Ron Watson viewed this meeting 
remotely

96. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Maher.

97. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received.

98. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

Decision Made:

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on 4 February 2021 be approved as 
a correct record.

99. PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2021/22 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director of Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services advising that the CIPFA Prudential 
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities was introduced following the 
Local Government Act 2003; that it detailed a number of measures / limits 
/ parameters (Prudential Indicators) that were required to be set each 
financial year; and that the approval of these limits would provide a 
benchmark to measure actual performance against, to help ensure that the 
Council complied with relevant legislation, was acting prudently and that its 
capital expenditure proposals were affordable.

The report indicated that the Council was required to approve Prudential 
Indicators for the following items:

(i) Capital Expenditure (Section 2);
(ii) Financing Costs/Net Revenue Stream (Section 3);
(iii) Capital Financing Requirement (Section 4);
(iv) External Debt (Section 5-7); and

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 11TH FEBRUARY, 2021

90

(v) Treasury Management Indicators (Section 8).

Decision Made: That:

(1) the Council be recommended to set the Prudential Indicators, as 
detailed in the report, as the basis for compliance with The 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities;

(2) it be noted that the relevant Prudential Indicators will be revised as 
required and that any changes will be submitted to Cabinet and then 
to Council for approval;

(3) it be noted that the estimates of capital expenditure may change as 
grant allocations are received; and

(4) the Council be recommended to delegate authority to the Executive 
Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services in 
conjunction with the Cabinet Member – Regulatory, Compliance and 
Corporate Services to manage the Authorised Limit and Operational 
Boundary for external debt as detailed in Section 5 of the report.

Reasons for Decision:

To enable the Council to effectively manage its Capital Financing activities 
and comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities. The prudential indicators for the forthcoming and following 
years must be set before the beginning of the forthcoming year.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

None.

100. TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY 2021/22 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director of Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services that set out the following proposed 
policy and strategy documents, namely, the Treasury Management Policy, 
as set out in Annex A to the report; the Treasury Management Strategy. as 
set out Annex B to the report and the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement, as set out in Annex C to the report. 

The report indicated that the Council had adopted CIPFA’s revised 2017 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services which 
recommended the production of annual Treasury Management Policy and 
Strategy Documents; and that in addition, the Council had adopted and 
incorporated into both documents: 

(a) the requirements of the 2017 Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities; and

(b) an Investment Strategy produced in line with the Ministry of Housing 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 11TH FEBRUARY, 2021

91

Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) Statutory Guidance 
on Local Government Investments 2018. This set out the manner in 
which the Council would manage its investments, giving priority to 
the security and liquidity of those investments.

Decision Made:

That the Council be recommended to approve:

(1) the Treasury Management Policy Document for 2020/21, as set 
out in Annex A to the report; 

(2) the Treasury Management Strategy Document for 2020/21, as set 
out in Annex B to the report; and

(3) the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 2020/2; as set 
out in Annex C to the report. 

Reasons for Decision:

The Council has adopted CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management in the Public Services. The Code requires that the Council 
sets a policy and strategy for the effective operation of the Council’s 
Treasury Management function during the financial year.  This will ensure 
that cash flow is adequately planned, surplus monies are invested 
commensurate with the Council’s risk appetite whilst providing adequate 
portfolio liquidity, and that the borrowing needs of the Council are properly 
managed to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending 
obligations.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

None.

101. CAPITAL STRATEGY 2021/22 TO 2025/26 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director of Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services indicating that the Capital Strategy set 
out the long-term context in which capital expenditure and investment 
decisions were made and considered the impact of these decisions on the 
priorities within the Council’s Core Purpose and Framework for Change 
Programme and the promises made in the 2030 Vision for Sefton; that at 
the heart of the Capital Strategy was the Council’s core objective to 
continue to deliver financial sustainability; and that as such, a flexible 
capital investment programme was more important than ever as a method 
to stimulate and enable economic growth and strategic investment, 
ensuring best use of existing assets and of generating future income 
streams to pay for and deliver day to day services.   

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 11TH FEBRUARY, 2021

92

The Capital Strategy, attached to the report as Annex A, was a statutory 
document that the Council was required to have in place and be reviewed 
on an annual basis. 

The Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Skills, Councillor Atkinson 
referred to the Southport Town Deal and thanked the Town Deal Board 
Members for all their hard work, commitment, passion and vision and paid 
tribute to the sterling work of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board, Mr 
Rob Fletcher and Mr Andrew Booth.    

Councillor Atkinson also paid tribute to the hard work of Sefton Officers 
and emphasised how their commitment had played a pivotal role in driving 
the bid forward and highlighted that should the bid be successful then 
Sefton could benefit from £50m of investment.

Decision Made:

That the Council be recommended to approve the Capital Strategy as set 
out in Annex A of the report.

Reasons for Decision:

The Capital Strategy is a key policy document for Sefton Council and 
follows guidance issued in the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities (2017 Edition).  

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

None.

102. ROBUSTNESS OF THE 2021/22 BUDGET ESTIMATES AND THE 
ADEQUACY OF RESERVES – LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003 
- SECTION 25 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Executive Director of Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services indicating that to comply with statute, 
the Chief Financial Officer was required to report to Council prior to the 
approval of the budget and the setting of the Council Tax, to give 
assurance that the budget was robust and that there were adequate 
reserves and balances.  

The report also provided information on the following factors that had been 
considered:

 Financial Environment for Local Government and Sefton MBC
 Impact of previous years’ budget - 2020/21
 Central Government funding
 Maintaining service delivery
 Inflation and annual cost increases
 Financial management

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 11TH FEBRUARY, 2021

93

 CIPFA Financial Resilience Index and the CIPFA Financial 
Management Code

 Management of risk
 Capital Strategy and Strategic Investment
 External advice
 Reserves Strategy for 2021/22  

The report concluded that as a result of considering the issues contained 
within the report, it was the view that the budget proposed was a robust 
budget package and the opinion provided was in accordance with Section 
25 of the Local Government Act 2003. 

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services 
highlighted the challenges of developing and setting a budget during an 
ongoing pandemic and further highlighted the impact and consequences of 
the pandemic on the Councils budget in future years.   The Executive 
Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services emphasised the 
importance of having a degree of flexibility within the budget for in year 
spend.

The Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and Safeguarding, Councillor 
J. J. Kelly thanked the Executive Director for his detailed report and asked 
if the full cost of the pandemic had been met by the Government as 
promised back in April 2020.

The Executive Director responded that the full cost of the pandemic had 
not been met by Central Government and that Central Government had 
provided the Council with just over £23m of emergency funding in 20/21 
with also some flexibility around the collection fund in both the current year 
and next year being provided but not all costs or loss of income would be 
met.  He further reported that an example of how the impact of COVID was 
to be met by the council and central government was that Central 
Government had developed a cost sharing mechanism which meant that 
75% of losses from fees and charges were being met by Government with 
the Council absorbing the remaining 25% after a 5% top slice had been 
applied.

The Executive Director further reported that the cost sharing mechanism 
was scheduled to continue into quarter one of the next financial year and 
emphasised that the longer-term impact of the pandemic on the Councils 
Budget would continue in future years.

The Cabinet Member for Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services, 
Councillor Lappin thanked the Executive Director and his team for all their 
hard work at such a challenging time highlighting that the complexity of the 
report illustrated the difficulties the Council had and would continue to 
navigate in future years.

Councillor Lappin referred to the budget and more specifically the Council 
reserves, she explained that the Council were required to hold a minimum 
amount of reserves within its budget and that it was expected that the 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 11TH FEBRUARY, 2021

94

Council reserves would increase year on year.  Councillor Lappin 
emphasised that using Council reserves as part of budget spend was 
neither an option or best practise in financial management.

Decision Made:

That the Council be recommended to:

(1) note that the Local Government Act 2003, (section 25 as 
amended) requires the Chief Financial Officer to report formally on 
the following issues:

(a) an opinion as to the robustness of the estimate made and 
the tax setting calculations;

(b) the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves; and

(c) the production of longer-term revenue and capital plans; 
and 

(2) have regard to the matters raised in this report during the final 
stages of determining the budget for 2021/22.

Reasons for Decision:

The Local Government Act 2003, (section 25 as amended) requires the 
Chief Financial Officer to report formally on the issues contained within this 
report.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

None.

103. REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET PLAN 2021/22 – 2023/24 
AND COUNCIL TAX 2021/22 

The Cabinet considered the joint report of the Chief Executive and the 
Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services that 
provided:

 an assessment of the Council’s current financial position and approach 
to the 2021/22 Budget Plan and preparation for the three-year budget 
period 2022/23 to 2024/25;

 an update on the Government’s announcement of resources that were 
available to the Council for 2021/22;

 the Council’s current financial position and the assumptions built into 
the Medium-Term Financial Plan;

 the proposed Budget for 2021/22; and
 the proposed Capital Programme for 2021/22.

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 11TH FEBRUARY, 2021

95

The report set out the financial strategy of the Council and the national and 
local financial context within which it was operating and indicated that the 
Council had a statutory requirement to remain financially sustainable and 
to balance its budget every year.

The report also indicated that the Council’s Framework for Change 
Programme was a comprehensive and ambitious programme that sought 
to support the delivery of the Council’s core purpose; and that as would be 
expected with a programme of this size and complexity that spanned a 
number of financial years, the detailed proposals had been and would 
continue to be the subject of change as they were developed and 
ultimately implemented.  

Decision Made: That: 

(1) the update of the Medium-Term Financial Plan for the period 
2021/22 to 2024/25, be noted;

(2) the Council be recommended to approve the Budget Plan for 
2021/22, including the Revenue Budget, allocation of specific grants 
(section 13) and Capital Programme (Appendix C), and authorise 
officers to undertake the necessary actions to implement the 
recommendations;

(3) the Schools’ Forum decisions on the Dedicated Schools Grant and 
Individual School Budgets (Section 12); and

(4) approve the commencement/continuation of all appropriate activity 
within Framework for Change 2020, as detailed in the report, 
including, for example, consultation with employees and 
engagement with partners and contractual and policy changes.

Reasons for Decision:

The recommendations in the report provide the basis on which the Budget 
Plan will be balanced for the financial year 2021/22 and will ensure that 
the Council’s statutory obligations are met. In addition, it begins the 
planning for the financial strategy for the following three years to give the 
Council sufficient time to identify specific proposals to deliver financial 
sustainability over that period.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

The Council is legally required to set a balanced budget each year and the 
report has taken due consideration of all financial issues in its 
development.  No additional options are available for inclusion.  
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 11TH FEBRUARY, 2021

96

104. STREET LIGHTING ASSET PROJECT 

The Cabinet considered the report of the Head of Highways and Public 
Protection that sought approval to proceed with the Street Lighting Asset 
Project which would reduce energy usage, reduce carbon emissions and 
clear the backlog of age-expired street lighting assets.

The report referred to the Climate Emergency Declaration that was made 
by Sefton Council in July 2019.  The Council approved Sefton’s Climate 
Change Emergency Strategy and associated Action Plan with the 
aspiration of reducing Sefton Council’s carbon emissions to net zero by 
2030.  The report detailed the importance of reducing energy costs as 
good financial management, currently the energy used by Street Lighting 
accounts for 26% of the Council’s total carbon footprint with those costs 
increasing year on year.  The recommendations contained within the 
report, if approved would assist in the aspiration of reducing Sefton 
Council’s carbon emissions to net zero by 2030 whilst also reducing the 
Councils costs.

Decision Made: That:

(1) the Street Lighting Asset Project and delivery of the recommended 
option as set out in this report, be approved;

(2) the establishment of an in-house project team to manage the 
project, be approved;

(3) Council be recommended to approve a Supplementary Capital 
Estimate for the scheme of £12.750m, which is to be funded by 
prudential borrowing on an invest to save basis;

(4) it be noted that the proposal was a Key Decision but had not been 
included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions.  
Consequently, the Leader of the Council and the Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Regeneration and Skills) had 
been consulted under Rule 27 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules of the Constitution, to the decision being made by 
Cabinet as a matter of urgency on the basis that it was 
impracticable to defer the decision until the commencement of the 
next Forward Plan because undertaking the project requires 
substantial new Capital Investment which should be included within 
the proposed Capital Programme which is being considered by 
Cabinet on 11th February 2021, prior to consideration by Council on 
4th March 2021; and

(5) it be noted that the Leader of the Council and the Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Regeneration and Skills) had 
given his consent under Rule 46 of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules for this decision to be treated as urgent and not 
subject to "call in" on the basis that it cannot be reasonably deferred 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



CABINET- THURSDAY 11TH FEBRUARY, 2021

97

because it needs to be included within the 2021/22 Budget and 
Capital Programme to be considered by Council on 4th March 2021.

Reason for the Decisions:

To enable the Council to deliver the benefits set out in the Business Case.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

The business case has considered several alternatives, including 
continuing the current approach. Continuing the current approach would 
result in significantly increased costs, as energy prices are predicted to 
continue to rise; significant ongoing carbon emissions; and continued 
liabilities associated with the backlog of age-expired assets. The business 
case has considered the Strategic, Economic, Commercial, Financial and 
Management Case for each option, in order to determine the most 
favourable option.

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: 4 March 2021

Subject: Domiciliary Care Contracts

Report of: Executive Director 
of Adult Social Care 
and Health

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To seek approval to extend existing Lead Provider Domiciliary Care contracts and to 
provide an update on work taking place on this sector.

Recommendation(s):

It is recommended that;

(1) Current Lead Provider contracts for Areas 1, 2, 3 and 6 are each extended for a 
further twelve months (from 1st August 2021 onwards) as is provided for in the 
Contract (see 1.3 below);

(2) Decisions on making any final twelve-month extension period (after this proposed 
extension period) are delegated to the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care in 
consultation with the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health; and

(3)  Cabinet note the work taking place on the Domiciliary Care sector.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To ensure that Lead Provider contract arrangements remain thus ensuring that current 
services and commissioning processes are maintained.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

1. Not extending current Lead Provider contracts and re-procuring services – this 
option was considered and rejected as there is a need to ensure market stability at a 
time where the sector is dealing with the COVID-19 pandemic and there is 
uncertainty around both the duration of the pandemic and the longer-term 
ramifications of it.  In addition, should the tender for Areas 4 and 5 of Sefton 
commence, then any further procurement exercises may impact on the stability of the 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



sector.  It is also recognised that the current situation has identified opportunities to 
review new ways of working that have been implemented to respond to the 
pandemic, which could then be permanently implemented into new models of service, 
both for Domiciliary Care but also wider models of service linked to further supporting 
strategic aims around creating and maintaining Service User independence.

2. Extending contracts for the permitted two-year period – this option was 
considered and rejected as it was viewed that this extension period option was too 
long and that should new ways of working (as outlined in point 1 above) be identified, 
then they could be implemented as soon as practicable.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

Revenue costs with respect to the period of extension will be met from existing 
Domiciliary Care budgets.  Contracts will be extended based on pre-existing contractual 
and financial arrangements and so costs will be contained within existing budget 
provision.

Based on current fee rates paid and typical four-weekly payments made to the Providers, 
the combined annual value of the contracts for the four areas is £2.4m.

(B) Capital Costs

None

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

Legal Implications:

Care Act 2014
Care and Support Statutory Guidance
Public Contract Regulations 2015

Equality Implications:

The equality implications have been identified and mitigated.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:

The awarding of the contract extensions will secure the ongoing delivery of Domiciliary 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



Care personal care services to vulnerable people.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:

The awarding of the extensions encompasses the continuation of the current model of 
service which aims to achieve greater outcomes for Service Users and to support them 
to work towards greater independence.

Commission, broker and provide core services:

The awarding of the extensions will ensure that statutory services will continue to be 
delivered to vulnerable Service Users and also so that existing commissioning 
arrangements in place whilst the Council deals with the COVID-19 pandemic and 
explores future commissioning options.

Place – leadership and influencer:

Drivers of change and reform:

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:

Greater income for social investment: 

Cleaner Greener

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD.6300/21.) 
and the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD.4451/21) have been consulted and any 
comments have been incorporated into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

Consultation has taken place with Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council as the joint 
commissioner of services under the Pseudo Dynamic Purchasing System (PDPS) 
established with them under Liverpool City Region joint working arrangements.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting.

Contact Officer: Neil Watson
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 3744
Email Address: neil.watson@sefton.gov.uk

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report.

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 In 2018, the Council, working in partnership with Knowsley Metropolitan Borough 
Council established a Pseudo Dynamic Purchasing System (PDPS) which created 
a list of providers who were willing to work in Sefton and demonstrated that they 
meet the criteria to be able to deliver domiciliary care in Sefton. There was then an 
immediate “call off” of the PDPS to award contracts for Lead Providers to work area 
1,2,3 and 6 of Sefton as detailed in the following map;  

1.2. Contracts commenced from the following dates;

 Area 1 – 1st August 2018
 Area 2 – 1st October 2018
 Area 3 – 3rd September 2018
 Area 6 – 1st August 2018

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



1.3. The contracts were for an initial three-year period, with the option to extend them 
for a further two years either in a single extension or via two separate twelve-
month extension options.

1.4. The current combined annual value of the four contracts (based on current fee 
rates paid and typical payments made to the Providers) is £2.4m.

1.5. The Lead Provider contracts encompass the Providers being required to accept 
the majority of new referrals / care packages and deliver the full requirements of 
the service specification.

1.6. As indicated on the above map, the remaining areas of Sefton (classed as areas 4 
and 5) have separate contractual arrangements in place and at the time of the 
PDPS procurement exercise were not included.  However subsequent to the 
commencement of the PDPS, Areas 4 & 5 have been included in the PDPS and in 
October 2019 Cabinet approved the commencement of a procurement exercise to 
secure Lead Provider/s in these areas, utilising the PDPS as the mechanism to 
conduct any such exercise.  To date, this procurement exercise has not 
commenced and an update on this issue is provided in section 3 of this report.

2. Extension of Existing Contracts

2.1. It is recommended that the existing Lead Provider contracts are extended for a 
twelve-month period from the expiry date of their initial three-year period.

2.2. These extension periods have been recommended as the sector (as with other 
Adult Social care service sectors) is operating during unprecedented times due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic, and at this current time it is unknown how long the 
pandemic will last for and also what the longer-term ramifications of it will be.  It is 
felt that any potential re-procurement exercise could further destabilise the 
market, especially with respect to the workforce (as TUPE transfers may take 
place), but also for Service Users.

2.3. The contracts will be extended under the current terms and conditions. However, 
in October 2020, the Council (in line with developments outlined to Providers at 
the time of the tender) implemented revised payment arrangements, principally 
with respect to paying Providers based on actual services delivered, which in turn 
ensures that Service Users are charged based on the actual level of service they 
received.  The implementation of these new payment arrangements is currently 
being reviewed and it could be the case that any further changes are incorporated 
into the contract extensions.

2.4. In line with the Council’s contract procedure rules, an evaluation of the contracts 
has in part taken place, however the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted on this 
work.  In addition, current contractual requirements, principally with respect to 
targets around acceptance of referrals, have had to be relaxed as the primary 
focus has been to support the wider Health economy with issues such as timely 
discharges from Hospital.  This has meant that resources have had to be 
focussed on supporting these requirements and putting in place Domiciliary Care 
packages as soon as possible.

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



2.5. However, it will be the case that contract monitoring will continue to take place 
and the Lead Providers will be advised of this and that this work will be used to 
inform future commissioning and contract decisions.

2.6. It is also recommended that any decisions on further extensions to the current 
Lead Provider contracts are delegated to the Cabinet Member – Adult Social 
Care, in consultation with the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health.

3. Associated Work Taking Place on the Domiciliary Care Sector

3.1. It is also important to highlight that both currently and during the period of the 
proposed contract extensions, a significant amount of work will be taking place 
relating to the sector.

3.2. In order to respond to the pressures that the COVID-19 pandemic has placed on 
the Health and Social Care sector, new ways of working have been implemented 
and whilst these are still being developed and configured, it is anticipated that they 
can be assessed and used to inform future commissioning decisions.

3.3. The COVID-19 pandemic has also heralded further integration work between the 
Council and the Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups but is recognised that 
there is scope to explore further integration such as joint commissioning and 
contractual arrangements.  This includes, but is not limited to, expanding the 
provision of Reablement and short-term intervention services in order to support 
wider strategic objectives and the Independence at Home agenda.

3.4. Running parallel with this work will be engagement with Providers, Service Users 
and Stakeholders to gather their views on how the COVID-19 pandemic has 
impacted on them and how services could be reconfigured within any future re-
commissioning exercises.

3.5. All of the above will inform future decisions on contractual and service delivery 
arrangements and should Lead Provider contracts not be extended beyond the 
proposed extension period, leading to services being re-procured, then it is 
envisaged that the following timeline will be implemented;

Commissioning / Procurement Activity Timeframes

Commissioning and Scoping Work, including, but not 
limited to;

 Deal with ongoing COVID situation, assess impact on 
markets, 

 Further review work (including Reablement etc)
 Develop new model of service
 Conduct assessment of current commissioning routes (i.e. 

current PDPS) to inform decisions on any new procurement / 
framework arrangement

March 2021 – 
January 2022

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



Potential Re-Procurement Exercise

 Development of tender documentation
 Tender advertised / Providers submit tenders
 Tender Evaluation exercise
 Awarding of Contracts
 New Contracts Implementation Work ([potential TUPE 

transfers etc)

February 2022 – 
August 2022

3.6. With respect to Areas 4 & 5 of Sefton, engagement with the current Provider in 
these areas is still taking place, however it is envisaged that a procurement 
exercise may commence imminently to secure new Lead Provider/s in these 
areas.

3.7. Further engagement with the current Provider will take place in order to discuss 
the process for any such procurement exercise, but also to explore any potential 
alternative options for the current services and how such options could link to the 
issues outlined in section 3.3 of this report.

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: 4 March 2021

Subject: Savio Salesian College - Approval of Legal Documentation for 
Academy Conversion

Report of: Interim Head of 
Education 

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Children, Schools and Safeguarding

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To inform Cabinet of the decision by the Secretary of State for Education to convert 
Savio Salesian College, to a sponsored academy in accordance with statutory 
requirements and seek authorisation for officers to sign the documentation required to 
by the academy conversion process.

Recommendation(s):    That the Cabinet be requested to: 

(1) note the statutory requirements regarding academy conversion;

(2) note the financial implications to the Council of the academy conversion; and

(3) authorise appropriate officers, the Executive Director of Corporate Resources and 
Customer Services and the Executive Director of Children’s Social Care and Education 
in consultation with the Cabinet Member to complete the necessary agreements required 
as part of the academy conversion process as outlined in the report.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

Cabinet needs to authorise appropriate officers to enter into the agreements required as 
part of the academy conversion process

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)
No other options are available. The Secretary of State has the powers to direct 
that the academy conversion process can continue if the agreements are not 
signed.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

There will be financial implications to the Council from the conversion of the 
school to an academy. These have been highlighted in detail later in the report 
under paragraph 3 but will include the loss of funding for Education functions to 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



maintained schools, the loss of Traded service income; reductions to the amounts 
de-delegated funding towards specific central functions and more importantly, 
owing to the school in question being an ordered conversion by the Secretary of 
State, any deficit balance position at the point of transfer which is estimated to be 
approximately £700K. 

The Council has sufficient provision assigned to cover the closing deficit, however 
losses in income from Traded Services will need to be met from appropriate 
Service Department budgets. The overall financial position of the school will be 
carefully monitored up to conversion.

(B) Capital Costs N/A

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
Upon conversion to an Academy, staff within the school will transfer under Transfer of 
Undertakings Protection of Employment Regulations 2006 (“TUPE”) to the new Multi 
Academy Trust. As a voluntary aided school under the Archdiocese that school and 
Governing Body are the current employer and employment will move for those 
employees to the Multi-Academy Trust with protections under that legislation

The Archdiocese has informed officers that the Multi-Academy Trust will form its own 
collective bargaining structures and not continue to utilise Human Resources 
professional advice or HR Transactional services such as payroll from Sefton MBC.

The academy conversion will also see the transfer of all school land to the Multi-
Academy Trust from Sefton Council via a lease agreement for 125 years.

Legal Implications: The conversion of schools to academies is a statutory 
process under the Academies Act 2010.

As the school is eligible for intervention under sections 61 and 62 of the 2006 
Education and Inspections Act, the Secretary of State for Education under Section 4 
of the Academies Act 2010 (as amended by the Education and Adoption Act 2016) is 
required to an issue Academy Order. The Order provides that on the conversion date, 
the school in question shall become an academy and shall cease to be maintained by 
the Local Authority.

The governing body and the local authority are also under a duty to take all 
reasonable steps to facilitate the making of academy arrangements with a sponsor, 
once determined (section 5B of the Academies Act 2010, as amended by the 
Education and Adoption Act 2016).

The principal issues in relation to conversion are: transfer of Staff; transfer of Land and 
transfer of Assets and Contracts. These issues will be addressed in two documents for 
the conversion- a Commercial Transfer Agreement and a Lease Agreement.
Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



Protect the most vulnerable: this will ensure that there is Catholic provision for the most 
vulnerable secondary aged pupils in South Sefton.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: continue to provide Catholic education for 
secondary aged pupils in South Sefton.

Commission, broker and provide core services: Catholic education for secondary aged 
pupils.
Place – leadership and influencer: N/A

Drivers of change and reform: N/A

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: N/A

Greater income for social investment: N/A

Cleaner Greener: N/A

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Customer Services (FD.6305/21.....) 
and the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD.4456/21....) have been consulted and 
any comments have been incorporated into the report.

(B) External Consultations 

As part of the process the school will consult with staff and trade unions.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting

Contact Officer: Tricia Davies
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 3428
Email Address: tricia.davies@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

Academy Order made further to section 4(A1) of the Academies Act 2010 (22 July 2016)

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



1. Introduction/Background

1.1 Savio Salesian College was judged inadequate at its last inspection. As the 
school is eligible for intervention under sections 61 and 62 of the 2006 
Education and Inspections Act, the Secretary of State for Education, under 
Section 4 of the Academies Act 2010 (as amended by the Education and 
Adoption Act 2016), is required to an issue Academy Order. The Order 
provides that on the conversion date, the school in question shall become an 
academy and shall cease to be maintained by the Local Authority.

1.2 Since this school was judged inadequate the Local Authority has exercised its 
statutory duty to intervene and develop an action plan to support improvement 
in the school.

2. Academy Conversion Process

2.1 The process for schools converting to academies is legislated for under the 
Academies Act 2010 (as amended) which states that the Secretary of State 
is required to make an Academy order in respect of a maintained school in 
England if the school is eligible for intervention (within the meaning of Part 4 
of EIA 2006). Savio Salesian College by virtue of the inspection outcome 
falls within this category. As part of the process the Regional Schools 
Commissioner will choose a sponsor for the school. The Governing Body of 
the school and the local authority both have a statutory duty to facilitate the 
academy conversion.

2.2 The Academies Act 2010 contains specific powers for the Secretary of State 
in respect of the land of the schools when they were maintained schools. It is 
intended that the transfer of publicly funded land owned by the local authority 
to the Academy will be by way of a 125-year lease.

2.3 Lease will be drawn up to comply with the above requirements and to ensure 
there are no undue risks to the authority and that any usage rights etc are 
preserved. The lease transfers the responsibility for the operation and 
management of the land and buildings to the Academy Trust sponsoring the 
school.

Commercial Transfer Agreement

2.4 This document is designed to ensure that all information on the staff who are 
transferring to the academy is recorded and transferred to the Academy 
Trust, so that the appropriate arrangements for payment of salaries, pension 
contributions, etc. can be made. It also includes details of any assets or 
contracts that will transfer to the Academy Trust and of those that will not.

2.5 A Commercial Transfer Agreement, which is an agreement between the 
school governing body, the local authority and the academy trust, will drawn 
up. Officers will ensure that all appropriate responsibilities and liabilities are 
transferred to the Academy Trusts to ensure there are no undue risks to the 
authority.

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



Assignment or novation of contracts

2.6 This forms part of the Commercial Transfer Agreement and covers 
agreements and contractual arrangements which will need to transfer to the 
Academy Trust.

2.7 Specific contracts and arrangements in respect of the converting school have 
been identified.

TUPE Process

2.8 The Employees within the School are employed by the Governing Body who 
are responsible for the movement of employees from the School which is 
converting to the new Multi-Academy Trust.

2.9 TUPE consultation will need to be undertaken as part of the process. The 
Governing Body as the Employer of the employees within the School are 
responsible for this along with the Multi-Academy Trust. Consultation with the 
Council’s trade unions will also be necessary in respect of any effects of the 
TUPE transfer to Council employees.

2.10 By virtue of TUPE, there is a legal obligation to provide written information 
about the transfer to employee representatives. The information which the 
current employer must give in writing to employee representatives (which will 
be trade union representatives):

 The fact that the transfer is to take place, when and why;

 The "legal, economic and social implications" of the transfer for the 
affected employees;

 The "measures" which the employer envisages it will take in 
connection with the transfer or, if no measures are envisaged, that fact; 
and

 Any measures which the employer envisages the Academy Trust 
taking in connection with the transfer in respect of the transferring 
employees or, if no measures are envisaged, that fact.

2.11 By virtue of TUPE terms and conditions of employment should be protected in 
accordance with the legislation.  The Multi-Academy Trust will be required to 
provide full details to the Governing body to allow meaningful consultation.

2.12 No specific timescale is provided for consultation, but it must be meaningful 
with legal penalties and remedies in respect of consultation if it does not take 
place as required. 

2.13 By virtue of TUPE terms and conditions should be protected. The contractual 
documentation should address this.  Pension issues should also be 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



addressed accordingly in the process between the Governing Body and Multi 
Academy Trust.

3.0 Financial Implications

3.1 The potential financial implications to the Council as a result of the Academy 
conversion are listed below.

3.2 Maintained schools pay a contribution from their delegated budget each year 
to the Local Authority towards the costs of meeting its statutory education 
functions for maintained schools. Academies can purchase certain school 
support services from whoever they choose. The amount Savio currently pays 
for this support is £22.5k.

3.3 Savio Salesian College currently buys into many traded services from the 
Council.   The MAT has already stated that they will not be buying into central 
support functions such as HR and Finance, however it is not known at this 
time what other traded services may be at risk.  

3.4 As the Academy Order is being made by the Secretary of State any financial 
deficit at the point of conversion remains with the Council and does not transfer 
to the MAT. Savio is currently operating under a Licensed Deficit agreement with 
the Council and the estimated financial deficit at the point of conversion is 
estimated to be £700k.

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: 4 March 2021

Subject: Afghan MOD Scheme

Report of: Head of 
Communities

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member – Communities & Housing 

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary

To outline the Afghan MOD Scheme and the options for Sefton’s participation 
including agreeing a pledge of numbers of people to be assisted (25 people is 
recommended). In addition to seek approval to appoint the South Sefton Housing 
Group (Lead organisation Bosco) to deliver the scheme on a 1 year +1+1 
arrangement, and to seek delegated authority to the Head of Communities to approve 
the waiver and any subsequent extension periods. 

Recommendation(s):

That the Cabinet be requested to:

(1) approve Sefton’s participation in the Afghan Ministry of Defence (MOD) 
Scheme from April 2021;

(2) agree a “pledge” of up to 25 people to be assisted in 2021/22;

(3) approve the appointment of the South Sefton Housing Group (lead 
organisation Bosco) from April 2021 to deliver the scheme on a 1 year +1+1 
arrangement;

(4) approve the Head of Communities to seek a waiver from an Executive Director 
to the Contract Procedure Rules to make a direct award of the contract to 
South Sefton Housing Group; and

(5) approve any extension to the contract following the initial first year be 
delegated to the Head of Communities in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member – Communities and Housing.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To participate in a scheme that supports former MOD Afghan personnel that have 
suffered persecution since the British military withdrawal from Afghanistan. To agree a 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



pledge of 25 people per year which is consistent with the similar Syrian resettlement 
scheme.  To appoint South Sefton Housing Group (lead organisation Bosco) to deliver 
the scheme given their track record in the Syrian Resettlement scheme and their local 
knowledge and delivery partnerships. The scheme expenditure will be below   the light 
touch threshold in relation to the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and is for a 1 year 
+1+1 arrangements. Delegated authority to the Head of Service to approve the waiver 
and to approve future extensions in consultation with the Cabinet Member – 
Communities and Housing will provide a seamless approval process.  
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

The following options was considered and rejected;

1. Not to be involved in the scheme – this option was rejected as there is a moral 
responsibility to support the scheme which will further enrich Seftons diverse 
communities. 

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

There are no costs to the Council. The scheme is funded by the way of funding 
instructions administered by the Home Office and funded by the Ministry of Defence. The 
Council will receive the funding for each household and pass this onto South Sefton 
Housing Group. 

The funding is relevant to the type of household supported and the number and age of 
the people involved. It is estimated for a pledge of 25 people made up of family 
households the annual funding provided to South Sefton Housing Group by the MOD 
would be between £123,055 & £178,353

(B) Capital Costs

None

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

None
Legal Implications:

None

Equality Implications:

The equality Implications have been identified and mitigated. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



By participating in the scheme we are supporting vulnerable former MOD personnel. 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:

By improving the diverse richness of our communities, and the short term support that is 
given as part of this scheme we are increasing the resilience. 
Commission, broker and provide core services:

By commissioning South Sefton Housing Group we are appointing local providers that 
support community and voluntary services. South Sefton Housing Group have a proven 
local track record in this specialist area of work.

Place – leadership and influencer:

Drivers of change and reform:

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:

Greater income for social investment: 

Cleaner Greener:

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director Corporate Resources & Customer Services (FD 6292/21) and the 
Chief Legal & Democratic Officer (LD.4493/21....) have been consulted and any 
comments have been incorporated into the report.

The Councils Procurement Team have also been consulted. 

(B) External Consultations 

None

Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Cabinet decision.

Contact Officer: Tanya Wilcock 
Telephone Number: 07890596169
Email Address: Tanya.Wilcock@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:
None.

Background Papers:

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



There are no background papers available for inspection.
1.   Introduction

1.1. Local Authorities have been invited by the Home Office, to participate in the 
Afghan MOD Scheme which is due to start in April 2021.

1.2. The scheme is aimed at Locally Employed Staff (LES) from Afghanistan that were 
made redundant following the UKs military withdrawal. Typically these LES acted 
as interpreters for the British army and now are viewed as traitors and are being 
persecuted.

2.1 This is not a refugee resettlement programme. The families coming through the 
scheme are not refugees and do not arrive with refugee status. They have 5 year 
leave to remain with the option of applying for indefinite leave to remain at the end 
of this period. This is a redundancy package for their service in Afghanistan with 
the UK Armed Forces. It is a 4 month support package to help the families settle 
in to life in the UK.

2. Key Deliverables  

2.1. The key deliverables for this scheme are:

Integration support

Reception arrangements for Clients and, where appropriate their Dependants, at 
the airport, including handover from flight escorts and welcome briefing. 

a. A package of advice and assistance to cover employment, welfare benefits, 
housing, health, education and utility supply. Specifically, this package should 
ensure that new arrivals are registered with GPs, registered with their local Job 
Centre Plus, receive a National Insurance Number and assistance to secure 
school places for school aged children.

b. Orientations to the local area.

Accommodation

c. Four (4) months accommodation from the date of arrival. The accommodation will 
be in accordance with Local Authority housing standards and should be modestly 
furnished. 

Cash Support

d. Cash payments pending access to and receipt of mainstream welfare benefits or 
securing employment, whichever occurs first. These payments will be equivalent 
to – 

 Job Seekers Allowance rates for adults, and 
 asylum support rates for children 

e. Payments will be made on the basis of need and only up to the point at which 
mainstream welfare benefits are received or employment is secured, whichever 
occurs first. The Recipient should ensure every effort is made to keep the period 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



of payment to as short a time as possible by assisting Clients to make a claim for 
welfare benefits, and it should not exceed four (4) months. 
Transport

f. Transport from the arrival airport to the accommodation.

In addition to the package of advice and assistance outlined in paragraph 3.1 
below the Recipient may use the integration element of the funding to provide 
other support that they judge will assist the Client to integrate in the UK.

3 The Funding Package available for the Scheme 

3.1 The Funding package for delivering the scheme is provided by the Ministry of 
Defence

3.2 The scheme is very similar to the Syrian Refugee Resettlement Scheme that 
Sefton has been part of since 2015. Based on this experience we know that we 
would be looking to assist family units as these matches the Housing availability 
we have in South Sefton. Assuming we accommodate 5 x families of 5 each with 
a child under 2 then the annual cost to the MOD would be between £123,055 - 
£178,353 This is dependent on how quickly both Job Seekers allowance / 
Universal Credit and Local Housing Allowance / Housing Benefit comes into 
payment. £123,055 assumes these come into payment from the first day or 
residence (likely given the support mechanism and systems already in place from 
the Syrian Resettlement Scheme). £178,353 assumes these benefits do not come 
into payment at all during the 4 month support period. 

3.3 Procurement advice is that these levels allow for light touch procurement and fall 
under OJEU requirements. Furthermore a 1 year +1, +1 arrangement is 
recommended. Legal advice is that a new agreement specifically for this scheme 
be drawn up to protect the Council. 

4. South Sefton Housing Group & Procurement

4.1 South Sefton Housing Group (SSHG) are an alliance of several organisations in 
the South Sefton area. They include

 Bosco Society Ltd
 Venus
 Excell Housing 
 New Start

As mentioned throughout this report SSHG have since 2015, delivered the Syrian 
Refugee Resettlement programme that has seen over 100 Syrian refugees 
successfully resettled in Sefton. This scheme, whilst not a refugee resettlement 
scheme is incredibly similar and therefore it makes sense given SSHGs local 
knowledge and delivery to appoint them to deliver the Afghan MOD Scheme.

4.2 SSHG could be commissioned by the use of a waiver which Cabinet are asked to 
provide delegated authority to the Head of Communities to authorise. Cabinet are 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



also asked to provide delegated authority to the Head of Communities to approve 
subsequent annual extensions to the agreement. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: 4 March 2021

Subject: New Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation Duty  

Report of: Head of 
Communities

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member – Communities & Housing 

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary

To outline the New Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation Duty that the Domestic 
Abuse Act will introduce, the responsibilities this will bring and the work that needs to 
be undertaken in order to prepare for when the new duty comes into force in April 
2021. The report also seeks approval for the creation of a Local Domestic Abuse 
Partnership Board and new governance arrangements including membership.

Recommendation(s):

That the Cabinet be requested to:

(1) approve the creation of a Local Domestic Abuse Partnership Board (LPB) 
ensuring the membership meets the requirements of the draft statutory 
guidance and select an elected member to chair the new board;

(2) approve the creation of a Survivor Forum that will have a representative on the 
LPB;

(3) authorise the Head of Communities to appoint a consultant/additional 
temporary member of staff to undertake a Needs Assessment and the work 
outlined in paragraph 5 of the report;

(4) approve the revision of the Sefton Domestic Abuse Strategy to reflect the 
outcome of the Domestic Abuse (DA) Needs Assessment which is also a 
requirement of the duty;

(5) note the various commissioning arrangements for DA services in Sefton and 
bring them into a coherent timetable to ensure that the meet the 
recommendations of the needs assessment and DA Strategy; and

(6) approve the creation a range of Safe Accommodation options for DA 
victims/survivors in Sefton.

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

The Domestic Abuse Act will place a statutory obligation on Local Authorities to create a 
Local Domestic Abuse Partnership Board who will be responsible for giving effect to the 
Sefton Domestic Abuse Strategy and in particular the new Safe Accommodation duty the 
Act place on Local Authorities. The Act recommends membership for Local Partnership 
Boards, however the governance arrangements fall outside the current arrangements for 
the Safer Sefton Communities Partnership and will need amending and approving. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

The following option was considered and rejected;

1. Not to create a Local Domestic Abuse Partnership Board – this option was 
rejected as there is a statutory responsibility to create the board. 

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

The Minister for Housing, Communities and Local Government has provided £50k of 
capacity funding in order to support Local Authorities in getting ready for the new safe 
accommodation duty.
No additional revenue costs for the Council associated to the duty are not known at this 
time however, the Minister for Housing, Communities and Local Government has 
announced that Sefton will receive £605,595 new burdens funding for 2021/22.

(B) Capital Costs

None

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

None - all setup costs will be met from £50k Grant Funding provided by Minister for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government. 
Legal Implications:

Amongst other things The Domestic Abuse Bill places a duty on local authorities in 
England to provide support to victims of domestic abuse and their children in refuges 
and other safe accommodation and to establish a Local Domestic Abuse Local 
Partnership Board. The implications for the Council are outlined in the report.

Equality Implications:

The equality Implications have been identified and mitigated. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable:

By fulfilling our obligations under the new safe accommodation duty we are supporting 
vulnerable residents who are victims of Domestic Abuse . 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:

By tackling Domestic Abuse we are increasing the resilience of our communities. 

Commission, broker and provide core services:

The Local Domestic Abuse Partnership Board will have responsibility for commissioning 
Domestic Abuse services in Sefton that tackle the gaps identified in the Strategic Needs 
Assessment. 
Place – leadership and influencer:

Drivers of change and reform:

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:

Greater income for social investment: 

Cleaner Greener:

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director Corporate Resources & Customer Services (FD6291/21) and the 
Chief Legal & Democratic Officer (LD.4492/21....) have been consulted and any 
comments have been incorporated into the report.

Consultation with the Safer Sefton Communities Partnership has also taken place.  

(B) External Consultations 

None

Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Cabinet Member decision.

Contact Officer: Tanya Wilcock 
Telephone Number: 07890596169
Email Address: Tanya.Wilcock@sefton.gov.uk

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



Appendices:

None.

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1 Introduction

1.1 The Domestic Abuse Bill is currently receiving its second reading in the House of 
Lords. It is now likely that the Bill will receive Royal Assent in the Spring of 2021. 
Despite this the Minister of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) are moving forward in preparing for the Bill and in particular the New 
Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation Duty (New Duty) that the Act will bring.

2 Local Domestic Abuse Partnership Board 

2.1 The Act brings a requirement for the creation of a Local Domestic Abuse 
Partnership Board (LPB). The role of the LPB will be to support Local Authorities by 
providing advice on the exercise of the following functions:

 Assessing the needs and demand for support within safe accommodation for all 
victims and their children, including those that require highly specialist and cross-
border support 

 Preparing and publishing a whole-area domestic abuse strategy setting out the 
steps needed to meet the needs of diverse victims and their children, joining up 
strategies across local areas where appropriate.

 Giving effect to the strategy by making commissioning and decommissioning 
decisions of support at a local level.

 Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of the strategy, including local delivery 
of support within domestic abuse safe accommodation

 Report on progress and how funding has been used to MHCLG.

2.2 The membership of the board should have representation from or have someone 
who represents the views/interests of 

 Victims of DA
 Children of DA Victims
 DA Charities and other VCS organisations
 Health Care Services
 Police and Criminal Justice 
 Local Housing 
 Local Authority

2.3 The natural vehicle in Sefton for the LPB would be the Domestic Abuse Steering 
group that is a sub group of the Safer Sefton Community Partnership (SSCP). The 
draft guidance provided by MHCLG indicates the LPB stands alone and the 
governance does not fall under the remit of any other statutory body eg Community 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



Safety Partnerships. However, it is envisaged that the LPB works closely with both 
the SSCP and Local Safeguarding Children’s and Adult’s Board.

2.4 The membership of the current DA Steering Group is a fair reflection of all DA 
services in Sefton apart from representation from Victims/Survivors of DA. It is 
recommended that a local Survivor forum where victims/survivors could meet and 
share experiences and support each other is created. A representative from this 
group could sit on the LPB. The only other area that would probably need 
strengthening is that of local housing providers. Currently only One Vision Housing 
are represented. 

2.5 The board is required to make commissioning and decommissioning decisions of 
support for the Local Authority at a local level and therefore the level of seniority 
that attends the steering group may need reviewing. Whilst organisations/services 
are fairly represented, many attendees are of an operational nature which is really 
valuable and not to be discarded but the need for more senior representation to 
make key strategic commissioning decisions may be required. It is recommended 
that the Chair of the LPB is an elected member chosen by Cabinet to give the clear 
lines of governance.

3 Needs Assessment

3.1 There is a requirement for all Local Authorities to conduct a needs assessment that 
assesses the level of need for support services within safe accommodation for 
victims/survivors of DA, including those presenting from out of area. As well as the 
level of need it should also include an assessment of the level of need for specialist 
support services, especially those with protected characteristics under the 2010 
Equality Act.

3.2 Once complete the Needs Assessment will need to inform the DA Strategy. We are 
currently in year 1 of a 3 year strategy and whilst robust and a good piece of work, 
its likely to need a revision to reflect the detail within the DA Act and the results of 
the Needs Assessment. The LPB will be responsible for reporting progress on the 
published DA strategy to the government.

4 Strategy & Commissioning

4.1 The role of LPB is to give effect to the strategy. So once revised and published the 
DA Strategy will need to address the needs assessment by an effective 
commissioning model. MHCLG announced on 12 February 20201 that Sefton will 
receive new burdens funding of £605,595 for 2021/22.  Therefore a simple but 
coherent framework for commissioning DA services in Sefton that takes into 
account this new burdens funding and existing funding/commissioning 
arrangements is essential. 

5 Safe Accommodation

5.1 Safe Accommodation covers a wide range of options, examples are:

 Refuge accommodation – a refuge offers accommodation and intensive support 
which is tied to that accommodation. Victims, including their children, have to be 
refuge residents to access specialist emotional and practical support.

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



 Specialist safe accommodation – safe accommodation which provides 
dedicated specialist support to victims with relevant protected characteristics 
and/or complex needs, such as specialist refuges for BAME, LGBT, and disabled 
victims and their children.

 Dispersed accommodation:
o Safe, self-contained accommodation with the same level of specialist 

domestic abuse support as provided within a refuge but which may be 
more suitable for victims who are unable to stay in a refuge with communal 
spaces due to complex support needs or for families with teenage sons for 
example. 

o Safe, self-contained ‘semi-independent’ accommodation which is not within 
a refuge but with floating support for victims who do not require the intense 
support offered through refuge

 Sanctuary Schemes – properties with local authority installed Sanctuary 
Schemes or other similar schemes which provide enhanced physical security 
measures. A Sanctuary Scheme is a survivor centred initiative which aims to 
make it possible for victims of domestic abuse to remain in their own homes, 
where it is safe for them to do so, where it is their choice, and where the 
perpetrator does not live in the accommodation. This is done by providing 
additional security – ‘installing a sanctuary’ – to the victims’ property or perimeter. 
A number of local authorities run Sanctuary Schemes, working in partnership with 
the police to implement the scheme and any organisation working with an 
individual they deem suitable for sanctuary measures can make a referral to the 
scheme.

 Move-on and / or second stage accommodation - interchangeable terms for 
projects temporarily accommodating victims, including families who no longer 
need the intensive level of support provided in a refuge, but would still benefit from 
a lower level of domestic abuse specific support for a period before they move to 
fully independent and permanent accommodation. There is no expectation that 
every victim will require this. Many victims are ready to move straight to a 
permanent new home from refuge. However, move-on and / or second stage 
accommodation may be helpful in some cases.

 Other forms of domestic abuse emergency accommodation – i.e. a safe place 
with support. To give victims an opportunity to spend a temporary period of time to 
[consider and] make decisions in an environment which is self-contained and safe. 
This would include access to wrap around support and specialist support for 
victims with complex needs (including mental health needs and substance 
misuse).

5.2 It should be noted that accommodation such as generic Bed and Breakfast 
accommodation and homeless hostels are not considered relevant safe 
accommodation, and as such, local authorities cannot commission support within 
these types under this duty. 

5.3 It is recognised that we have some of these services already in Sefton – we have 
the refuge which we commission SWACA to deliver, we take part in Domestic 
Abuse Rapid Response scheme which is funded by MHCLG and delivered by 
YMCA. We offer, along with the RP sector target hardening that could be easily 
expanded to meet Sanctuary Scheme levels. However the current audit of 
services that the DA Steering Group is undertaking along with the needs 

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



assessment will identify where we have gaps in provision. Hopefully the new 
burdens funding will allow us to deliver these. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Cabinet Date of Meeting: 4 March 2021

Subject: Financial Management 2020/21 to 2023/24 and Framework for 
Change 2020 - Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2020/21 
including the Financial Impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 
Budget - March Update

Report of: Executive Director 
of Corporate 
Resources and 
Customer Services

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate 
Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To inform Cabinet of: 
1. The current estimated financial impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 Budget;
2. The current forecast revenue outturn position for the Council for 2020/21;
3. The current forecast on Council Tax and Business Rates collection for 2020/21; 
4. The monitoring position of the Council’s capital programme to the end of January 

2021: 
 The forecast expenditure to year end; 
 Variations against the approved budgets and an explanation of those 

variations for consideration by Members;
 Updates to spending profiles and proposed amendments to capital budgets 

necessary to ensure the efficient delivery of capital projects are also 
presented for approval.

Recommendation(s):

Cabinet is recommended to: 

Revenue Budget

1) Note the current estimated impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 Budget together 
with the key issues that will influence the final position.

2) Recognise the financial risks associated with the delivery of the 2020/21 revenue 
budget and the material variations that are to be expected to the current estimates 
contained in this report, and agree that subsequent reports provide updates and 
where appropriate remedial actions plans as appropriate;

3) Note the current forecast revenue outturn position for 2020/21;
4) Acknowledge that the forecast outturn position will continue to be reviewed to 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



ensure a balanced forecast outturn position and financial sustainability can be 
achieved;

5) Note the Government Workforce Capacity Fund grant that has been received to  
help local authorities to boost staffing levels and which will be utilised in 
accordance with central government guidance;

6) Note the transfer of any unspent Council resources from the Council Tax 
Exceptional Hardship Fund and the Emergency Limited Assistance Scheme into 
Earmarked Reserves to help support more residents in 2021/22. These transfers 
will be approved by the Section 151 officer, in consultation with the Chief 
Executive where applicable, in line with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.

Capital Programme

7) Note the spending profiles across financial years for the approved capital 
programme (paragraph 6.1.1);

8) Note the latest capital expenditure position as at 31 January 2021 of £14.572m 
(paragraph 6.2.1) with the latest full year forecast of £27.237m (paragraph 6.3.1);

9) Note explanations of variances to project budgets (paragraph 6.2.3); 
10) Approve of a supplementary capital estimate of £0.788m for the Bootle and 

Southport Town Hall retrofit energy saving works scheme, to be funded from a 
Public Sector Decarbonisation Fund (PSDF) Section 31 grant allocated by the 
Government. (paragraph 6.4); and,

11) Note that capital resources will be managed by the Executive Director Corporate 
Resources and Customer Services to ensure the capital programme remains fully 
funded and that capital funding arrangements secure the maximum financial 
benefit to the Council (paragraph 6.5.3).

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To ensure Cabinet are informed of the forecast outturn position for the 2020/21 Revenue 
Budget as at the end of January 2021, including delivery of a remedial action plan, and to 
provide an updated forecast of the outturn position with regard to the collection of 
Council Tax and Business Rates.  

To keep members informed of the progress of the Capital Programme against the 
profiled budget for 2020/21 and agreed allocations for future years. 

To progress any changes that are required in order to maintain a relevant and accurate 
budget profile necessary for effective monitoring of the Capital Programme.

To approve any updates to funding resources so that they can be applied to capital 
schemes in the delivery of the Council’s overall capital strategy.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)
N/A

Page 44

Agenda Item 8



What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
The report indicates that for 2020/21 there is currently a forecast surplus of £1.049m. 
This includes mitigating measures that have been identified in order to arrive at this 
surplus.

(B) Capital Costs
The Council’s capital budget in 2020/21 is £28.118m. As at the end of January 2021 
expenditure of £14.572m has been incurred and a full year outturn of £27.237m is 
currently forecast.

Implications of the Proposals:
The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out as follows:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
There is currently a budget surplus of £1.049m forecast for 2020/21. However, it should 
be noted that significant pressure and risk remains in five key business areas, namely 
Children’s Social Care, Children with Disabilities, Education Excellence, Locality 
Services and Winter Maintenance.  These budgets may experience further demand 
pressure during the remainder of the year in which case corresponding savings will 
need to be identified.  If this cannot take place there may be a call on the Council’s 
General Balances.

Legal Implications:
None

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:
Effective Financial Management and the development and delivery of sustainable annual 
budgets support each theme of the Councils Core Purpose.

Protect the most vulnerable:
See comment above

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:
See comment above

Commission, broker and provide core services:
See comment above

Place – leadership and influencer:
See comment above

Drivers of change and reform:
See comment above

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:
See comment above

Greater income for social investment: 
See comment above

Cleaner Greener:
See comment above

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Executive Director of Corporate Resources & Customer Services is the author of the 
report (FD 6309/21)

The Chief Legal and Democratic Officer has been consulted and has no comments on 
the report (LD 4460/21).

(B) External Consultations 

N/A
 
Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for the Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting

Contact Officer: Paul Reilly
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 4106
Email Address: paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report: 

APPENDIX A – Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2022/23

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



1. Introduction
 
1.1 In February 2020, Council approved the budget for 2020/21. This report provides 

an update on the forecast revenue outturn position for 2020/21, including the 
significant impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s 2020/21 budget. 

1.2 The report also outlines the current position regarding key income streams for the 
Authority, namely Council Tax and Business Rates. Variations against expected 
receipts in these two areas will also affect the Council’s financial position in future 
years. 

1.3 The capital section of the report informs Members of the latest estimate of capital 
expenditure for 2020/21 and forecast expenditure for 2021/22 and 2022/23. The 
capital budget to date is presented in section 6.1. Sections 6.2 and 6.3 review 
progress of the capital programme. Finally, Section 6.5 confirms that there are 
adequate levels of resources available to finance the capital programme.

2. Impact of COVID 19 on 2020/21 Budget
2.1 At the Cabinet meeting on 30 July 2020, Members received a comprehensive 

report that outlined the full range of financial issues that were being faced by the 
Council (and all other councils within the country) arising from the pandemic.  

2.2 At the Cabinet meeting on 4 February 2021, Members were provided with an 
update that based on an update to the monthly return to central government 
(MHCLG) the Council would  have a net shortfall of £19.2m in 2020/21 when these 
issues had been taken into account and the use of the £23.7m emergency fund 
from central government had been applied.  These figures reflected actual 
expenditure and receipts as at the end of December and estimates until the end of 
the year.  It was acknowledged that these figures could be the subject of material 
change depending on the impact of local and national restriction measures, social 
behaviour and the conditions within the local economy that drive employment and 
business activity.

Latest Submission to MHCLG – January 2021  
2.3 As Members will be aware each month the Council has been required to outline its 

cost pressures in its return to MHCLG.  The latest submission relating to January is 
due to be provided on 26 February 2021.  The latest estimates of the figures to be 
included on the return are detailed below. At the time of writing these figures are 
expected to be in line with those included in the return for December:

December 
2020 
£’m

January
 2021 
£’m

Forecast cost of responding the pandemic 17.0 17.0
Loss of income from fees and charges 16.1 16.1
Reduced Council Tax receipts 5.1 5.1
Reduced Business Rates receipts 4.7 4.7
Sub Total 42.9 42.9
Government Funding Received (23.7) (23.7)
Current Shortfall 19.2 19.2

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



2.4 The forecast losses of income from sales, fees and charges and receipts from 
Council Tax and Business Rates will continue to be monitored and assumptions 
refined during the remainder of the year.

Central Government Advice and Guidance
2.5 As outlined in previous reports to Cabinet, the government has introduced a 

scheme to cost share the income losses being incurred by the Council from sales, 
fees and charges.  

The Council will make three claims relating to 2020/2021.  The first claim was 
submitted in September 2020 and covered losses incurred between April and July.  
The second claim was submitted in December 2020 and covered losses incurred 
between August and November.  It is estimated that £10.7m of the overall losses 
shown in 2.3 fall under the remit and the conditions set out by central government 
for the scheme.  Under the cost sharing arrangement, the Council is estimated to 
receive £6.8m.  Therefore, the Council will need to fund £3.9m of these losses.

Those losses for which the Council is not entitled to any support is estimated to be 
£5.4m.  Therefore, total losses of £9.3m will need to be funded by the Council 
during the current year.  

In addition, in the Spending Review for 2020, the government announced a further 
scheme to support 75% of irrecoverable losses in 2020/2021 for Council Tax and 
Business Rates.  More details of the scheme were announced in the Provisional 
Local Government Finance Settlement.  Based on the figures reported to the 
MHCLG, the Council is estimating losses of £9.8m.  However, not all of this amount 
is eligible for support, e.g. losses due to non-collection of Council Tax. It is 
estimated that the Council would need to fund £4.8m of the estimated losses.  
However, under regulations this sum would need to be funded in future years. This 
will need to be funded from the emergency funding received by the Council and 
other temporary measures.

Potential Impact for Sefton

2020/21
2.6 As stated, there are two primary issues that need to be addressed in the current 

year for the Council:-
 The Council has a statutory responsibility to balance its budget, therefore needs 

to meet the net loss of fees and charges of £9.3m after government support 
(this assumes that the approved budget for the year is balanced); and

 The Council needs to have sufficient cash within its bank account to meet its 
ongoing costs throughout the year, i.e. cashflow.

2.7 The proposed approach to balancing this year’s budget was set out in the previous 
Cabinet report and this remains the Council’s preferred approach but will be 
dependent on the potential cost of responding further to the pandemic and the 
receipt of any further government support.  As previously stated, it is estimated that 
the Council’s share of this loss of income from fees and charges will be £9.3m and 
will be met from emergency funding.  

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



2.8 In respect of cashflow, the current analysis suggests that the Council will not need 
to borrow funds before the end of 2020/21 in order to support its expenditure plans.  
However, if any borrowing is required later in the year the approved Treasury 
Management Strategy and prudential indicators for 2020/21 can accommodate this.

2.9 As Members have discussed in recent months this position will inevitably be the 
subject of change between now and the end of the financial year and both the 
approved budget and the impact of the pandemic will require forensic monitoring 
and cost and income control as the risk to the financial sustainability of the Council 
has been significantly escalated.

Cost of responding to the pandemic
2.10 It can be seen from the table presented earlier in this report that the current 

forecast is that the Council has potential commitments totalling £17.0m from its 
emergency fund budget (this includes the contingency sum previously agreed by 
members).  

2.11 When the cost of responding to the pandemic to date and the loss of income that 
needs to be funded are taken into account then the preferred approach to meeting 
the cost of the pandemic can be delivered.  However, there would be little room for 
any further expenditure or income losses to be funded.  It is clear that the current 
wave of the pandemic and the restrictions that are being applied will require the 
Council to support residents as it did in the first wave and will see further pressure 
being placed upon income streams.  Therefore, due to the increase in cases of 
COVID-19 and national and local restrictions, it is anticipated that the fourth tranche 
of emergency funding will be fully utilised in directly supporting the Council’s 
response to the pandemic and the further loss of income that is anticipated 
between now and the end of the year.

Central Government Grant Programmes in Response to COVID-19 
2.12 As part of its role in responding to the pandemic, Central Government has 

requested that all councils administer a number of grant programmes that have 
been designed to support residents and businesses.  

Workforce Capacity Fund
2.13 On 17 January 2021, the government announced an extra £120 million Workforce 

Capacity Fund to help local authorities to boost staffing levels, a direct ask of the 
sector. The funding can:

 provide additional care staff where shortages arise
 support administrative tasks so experienced and skilled staff can focus on providing 

care
 help existing staff to take on additional hours if they wish with overtime payments or 

by covering childcare costs

2.14 Sefton’s allocation is £0.762m.  

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



3. Summary of the Forecast Outturn Position as at the end of January 2021
 

3.1 Members are provided with updates of the Council’s forecast financial position each 
month during the financial year from June onwards. 

3.2 Given the unprecedented financial challenges faced by the Council in relation to 
COVID-19, it is vital that the Council is able to achieve a balanced forecast outturn 
position for its normal activities, ignoring the impact of COVID-19 pressures.  
Therefore, the Council undertook initial budget monitoring during April and May to 
get an earlier indication on the likely pressures to be incurred.

3.3 As in previous years, significant pressures have been identified in several service 
areas at this early stage of the year, particularly Children’s Social Care, 
Communities (Children with Disabilities) Education Excellence (Home to School 
Transport) and Locality Services. Initial indications of the budget pressures are 
shown below:

Service Budget 
Pressure

£m

Children's Social Care – Placements & Packages 4.100
Communities – Children with Disabilities / PSR2 1.050
Education Excellence – Home to School Transport 0.200
Locality Services – Security Force 0.350

5.700

3.4 Given the uncertainty around COVID-19 it is vital that the Council ensures the 
2020/21 budget does not overspend.  Therefore, following the April monitoring 
position being determined, it was identified that a remedial plan needed to be 
developed. This has initially focussed on vacancy management with external 
recruitment being prioritised in Children’s Services, Family and Well Being 
Centres/Early Help and SEND, stopping all non-essential expenditure within the 
Council, with the exceptions of Children’s Social Care (due to the budget issues in 
that service) and Public Health (due to the current pandemic) and as per the 
Budget Report of February 2020, bringing through savings from the Framework for 
Change programme - these will be developed and shared with Members as per the 
Council’s established governance processes.  A budget shortfall of £5.7m equates 
to needing to identify savings to the value of 3.5% of the Council’s remaining 
budget and as this pressure is permanent long-term savings to this value are 
required moving into next year.

3.5 As a result of this work undertaken, the latest forecast of service expenditure 
indicates an underspend of £1.049m, an improvement of £1.732m from the 
December position.  However, this represents the forecast with two months of the 
financial year remaining which encompasses the winter period which can have a 
material impact on the budget in a number of areas hence the outturn forecast will 
vary in value over the next two months (there is a specific risk that should the 
recent cold weather continue into March that the winter maintenance budget will be 
under significant pressure).   It is however critical that in the event that budget 

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



pressure increases, corresponding savings are identified within the Council’s 
existing budget.  The table below highlights the variations:

3.6 The key areas relating to the outturn position are as follows:

 Adult Social Care (forecast £1.516m underspend) – Previous forecasts 
assumed that the Adult Social Care budget would break-even during 2020/2021.  
However, previous reports to Cabinet highlighted that there were a number of 
significant assumptions and uncertainties relating to COVID-19 that could impact 
on this position before the year-end.  Detailed work has now been undertaken on 
the level of expenditure relating to hospital discharges due to COVID-19 which will 
be funded by the CCGs from the allocations of funding they have received for this 
purpose from the Government, and how much will need to be funded by the 
Council.  Similarly, detailed work continues to be undertaken to evaluate and then 
estimate the financial impact of the pandemic on the services residential and day 
care services budgets.  This will impact not only this year’s budget but also that for 
2021/22.  The impact of this work is that an underspend is now forecast.  However, 
the level of underspend  won’t be fully known until the outturn position is finalised.

Budget Forecast 
Outturn

Variance Variance 
to 

December 
Position

£m £m £m £m
Services
Strategic Management 3.136 2.930 -0.206 -0.006

Adult Social Care 94.800 93.284 -1.516 -1.516
Children's Social Care 34.977 39.147 4.170 -0.644
Communities 18.359 19.263 0.904 -0.201
Corporate Resources 7.605 7.254 -0.351 -0.083
Economic Growth & Housing 5.659 5.686 0.027 -0.061
Education Excellence 9.783 9.972 0.189 -0.236
Health & Wellbeing 18.498 18.198 -0.300 0.000
Highways & Public Protection 10.553 10.588 0.035 0.016
Locality Services 12.240 12.427 0.187 -0.152

Total Service Net 
Expenditure

215.610 218.749 3.139 -2.883

Budget Pressure Fund 1.000 0.000 -1.000 0.000
In year savings 5.411 0.000 -5.411 0.000
Council Wide Budgets 14.360 16.783 2.423 1.151
Levies 34.701 34.701 0.000 0.000
General Government Grants (46.376) (46.576) -0.200 0.000

Total Net Expenditure 224.706 223.657

Forecast Year-End Deficit -1.049 -1.732

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



 Children’s Social Care (£4.170m net overspend) – Based on the current 
numbers of Looked After Children (617 at the time of writing), and assuming a 
further increase in line with the increase seen in 2019/20, the Placement and 
Packages budget is forecast to overspend by £4.152m in 2020/21.  

The pressure in this area of the Council will continue to be evaluated during the 
remainder of the year and the current and potential final financial position will 
inevitably be further impacted by the current COVID restrictions. Work has been 
undertaken to determine to what extent central government support via the 
emergency fund can contribute to this pressure.  This has resulted in a reduction in 
the forecast overspend compared to the December position.

As has been regularly reported over the last two years, the cost of Placements and 
Packages is the largest risk to the Council’s budget position.  The Council is 
currently working on developing a range of options to address the inherent demand 
and costs of Looked After Children whilst supporting the most vulnerable residents, 
but this budget remains under pressure and purely from a financial point of view 
this is likely to continue during this year and into the next financial year. 

 Communities – (£0.904m overspend) – The cost of placements and packages for 
Children with Disabilities is forecast to overspend by £0.896m (excluding the 
estimated additional costs relating to COVID-19).  This budget has been under 
increasing pressure in recent years but overspends have previously been offset by 
underspends elsewhere on the service.

In addition, there is a residual savings target from PSR2 of £0.584m for which 
specific savings have yet to be identified.  In 2019/20 these were achieved by 
vacancy savings and a number of one-off measures which are only partially 
contributing to achieving the target in 2020/21.

 Education Excellence (£0.189m overspend) - Home to School transport external 
provision has a projected overspend of £0.436m due to an increase in the number 
of children being transported plus an increase in the number of children in receipt 
of personal travel budgets.  These demand pressures have meant the budget has 
overspent for a number of years, despite increases being made to the budget, 
including £0.200m in 2020/21.

Work has been undertaken to determine to what extent central government support 
via the emergency fund can contribute to the pressure on Home to School 
Transport due to the impact of the current COVID restrictions.  This has resulted in 
a reduction in the forecast overspend compared to the December position.

 Locality Services (£0.187m overspend) – Some of the service pressures 
experienced in 2019/20 have continued into 2020/21. 

- Security Service (£0.678m overspend) – The forecast deficit is a reflection of an 
under recovery of income to support the cost base.  The forecast overspend is 
based on a prudent view of the income due.  The Service is to undertake a full 
review as part of the saving proposals below.

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



- Cleansing (£0.474m underspend) – The underspend is mainly due to the 
reduced costs of vehicles as the purchase of the new fleet will occur later than 
originally anticipated, resulting in lower prudential borrowing costs.

 Council Wide Budgets (£2.423m overspend) – The report relating to the Strand 
Shopping Centre presented to Cabinet on 4 February 2021 outlined that the 
potential outturn deficit for 2020/21, as a consequence of the impacts of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, is expected to be between £2.650m and £3.180m.

However, there remain factors that will influence this outcome for the financial year, 
including uncertainty on the end of the current lockdown and the nature of any 
reopening of retail; the continued uncertainty on the moratorium on landlords’ ability 
to pursue enforcement; and the ongoing pursuit of rent and service charge arrears.  
The budget monitoring position for January assumes a deficit of £2.900m.

Continuing measures to ensure a balanced budget position in 2020/2021

3.7 The forecast budget surplus as at January 2021 is £1.049m.  This includes the 
risks that are inherent in the Council’s financial position, particularly around demand 
for Children’s Social Care and other demand led services.  Whilst a budget surplus 
is being forecast further pressure is likely based on experience in previous years 
and there is also a need to manage the impact of COVID on the Council’s financial 
sustainability.  Therefore, financial principles utilised over the last decade will once 
again be maintained for the remainder of the year:

 All Heads of service as a minimum should contain expenditure within the 
budget forecast that had been made at the end of June - if there is to be any 
budget pressure above this, remedial measures will be required to meet the 
pressure or further savings being required across all services.

 To that end expenditure should only be incurred on essential activities during 
the year and a targeted approach to vacancy management as set out.

 Heads of Service and senior managers to place an increased emphasis on 
budget monitoring throughout the year to ensure all financial forecasts are 
robust and can be substantiated.

 The remedial action plan and mitigations proposed by Services be tracked 
for the remainder of the financial year to ensure they are being achieved.

3.8 Members will note that the Budget report that will be considered at the Council 
meeting on 4 March 2021 assumes that a £1m underspend will be carried forward 
as a one-off measure to support the budget in 2021/22.

Council Tax Exceptional Hardship Fund / Emergency Limited Assistance 
Scheme

3.9 The Council has annual budget provision to help support residents who may be 
having difficulty with paying their council tax (Exceptional Hardship Fund).  In 
2020/21, due to the impact of COVID-19, the government provided additional 
funding to enable all Council Tax Reduction scheme claimants to receive a discount 
of £150.  Any residual funding could be used to provide discretionary support for 
those facing payment difficulties.  Due to this additional funding it is forecast that 
the Council’s own budget provision will not be fully utilised in 2020/21.  It is 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



proposed that any underspend be transferred to an Earmarked Reserve to enable 
more support to be provided in 2021/22. This transfer, currently forecast to be 
£0.090m, will be approved by the Section 151 officer in line with the Council’s 
Financial Procedure Rules.

3.10 The Council also has annual budget provision to help support residents who may 
be experiencing other financial difficulties (Emergency Limited Assistance 
Scheme).  In 2020/21, due to the impact of COVID-19, the government has 
provided additional funding streams to allow the Council to support a greater 
number of residents.  Due to this additional funding it is forecast that the Council’s 
own budget provision will not be fully utilised in 2020/21.  It is proposed that any 
underspend be transferred to an Earmarked Reserve to enable support to be 
provided to more residents in 2021/22. This transfer, currently forecast to be 
£0.310m, will be approved by the Section 151 officer in consultation with the Chief 
Executive in line with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.

4. Council Tax Income – Update 
 
4.1 Council Tax income is shared between the billing authority (Sefton Council) and the 

three major precepting authorities (the Fire and Rescue Authority, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and the Combined Authority – Mayoral Precept) pro-rata to 
their demand on the Collection Fund. The Council’s Budget included a Council Tax 
Requirement of £139.830m for 2020/21 (including Parish Precepts), which 
represents 84.1% of the net Council Tax income of £166.267m. 

4.2 The forecast outturn for the Council at the end of January 2021 is a deficit of 
+£4.237m.  This variation is primarily due to: -

 The deficit on the fund at the end of 2019/20 being higher than estimated 
(+£0.047m);

 
 Gross Council Tax Charges in 2020/21 being higher than estimated (-£0.500m); 

 Exemptions and Discounts (including a forecasting adjustment) being higher 
than estimated (+£1.276m).  This is mainly as a result of a significant increase in 
the number of claimants for the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS).

 An increase in the amounts assumed for debt at risk both in the current year and 
previous years (+£3.414m).

4.3 Due to Collection Fund regulations, the Council Tax deficit will not be transferred to 
the General Fund in 2020/21 but will be carried forward to be recovered in future 
years.

4.4 A forecast deficit of £2.348m was declared on the 23 January 2020 of which 
Sefton’s share is £1.975m (84.1%).  This is the amount that will be recovered from 
the Collection Fund in 2020/21.  Any additional surplus or deficit will be distributed 
in 2021/22 and future years.

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



5. Business Rates Income – Update 
 
5.1 Since 1 April 2017, Business Rates income has been shared between the Council 

(99%) and the Fire and Rescue Authority (1%). The Council’s Budget included 
retained Business Rates income of £66.169m for 2020/21, which represents 99% of 
the net Business Rates income of £66.838m. Business Rates income has 
historically been very volatile making it difficult to forecast accurately. 

5.2 The forecast outturn for the Council at the end of January 2021 is a deficit of                        
£42.057m on Business Rates income. This is due to:

 The surplus on the fund at the end of 2020/21 being higher than estimated                 
(-£1.119m); 

 Reduction in the gross charge on rateable properties (£0.778m);
 A number of additional reliefs were announced after January 2020 to support 

businesses during the COVID-19 pandemic. These include expanded retail 
discount, pub relief, newspaper relief, and private nursery relief. The loss of 
income as a result of these reliefs will be covered by Section 31 grant payments. 
Due to the timing of these announcements the impact of these reliefs could not 
be incorporated into the budget figures reported in the NNDR1 return 
(+£38.141m).

 Increase in the Bad Debt and Appeals Provisions due the impact of the number 
of appeals being registered by businesses in response to the pandemic and the 
reduction in the amount of Business Rates being collected (£4.257m).  

5.3 When taking into account the additional Section 31 grants due on the additional 
reliefs, a net deficit of £3.604m is forecast.  

5.4 Due to Collection Fund regulations, a Business Rates deficit will not be transferred 
to the General Fund in 2020/21 but will be carried forward to be recovered in future 
years.  

5.5 A forecast surplus of £0.622m was declared in January 2020.  Sefton’s share of this 
is £0.616m.  This is the amount that will be distributed from the Collection Fund in 
2020/21 and any additional surplus or deficit will be distributed in future years.

6. Capital Programme 2020/21 – 2022/23

6.1 Capital Budget

6.1.1 The Capital Budget and profile of expenditure for the three years 2020/21 to 
2022/23 is as follows:

6.1.2 The following updates have been made to the Capital Programme since the last 
report to Cabinet: 

2020/21 £28.118m
2021/22 £38.986m
2022/23 £2.202m

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



 Adult Social Care:
- £1.5m for the Extra Care Housing project has now been re-profiled from 

2021/22 for delivery over two years: 2022/23 and 2023/24.

 Communities:
- £1.2m has been added for essential maintenance work at Dunes Splash 

World following approval by Council on 21 January 2021.

 Economic Growth and Housing:
- Cambridge Road Redevelopment – £0.450m has been rephased from the 

current year to 2021/22 due to a revised schedule of works and cashflow for 
the project.

 Highways & Public Protection:
- Highways Maintenance – £0.759m has been reprofiled from 2020/21 for 

works now programmed in 2021/22.

 Locality Services:
- Ainsdale Coastal Gateway – £0.352m has been added to the budget for a 

new scheme following approval by Council on 21 January 2021.
- £0.420m has been phased from 2020/21 for new wheeled bins now 

anticipated for delivery in 2021/22.

6.2 Budget Monitoring Position to January 2021

6.2.1 The current position of expenditure against the budget profile to the end of 
January 2021 is shown in the table below. It should be noted that budgets are 
profiled dependent upon the timing of when works are to be carried out and the 
anticipated spend over the financial year. For example, Education Excellence will 
typically carry out most of its capital works during key school’s holiday periods 
such as the summer recess (quarter two), whilst Highways and Public Protection 
will complete most of its programmed works during quarters two and four. The 
budget to date in the table below reflects the profiles of each individual scheme.

Service Area
Budget to 

Jan-21

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Jan-21
Variance 
to Jan-21

£m £m £m
Adult Social Care 1.428 1.363 -0.065
Communities 0.174 0.163 -0.011
Corporate Resources 0.486 0.371 -0.115
Economic Growth & Housing 1.239 1.194 -0.045
Education Excellence 3.126 3.133 0.007
Highways & Public Protection 8.064 7.464 -0.600
Locality Services 0.982 0.884 -0.098

Total Programme 15.499 14.572 -0.927

6.2.2 Analysis of significant spend variations under budget profile in 2020/21:
Page 56

Agenda Item 8



Corporate Resources
Scheme Variation Reason Action Plan

Victoria Baths 
Essential Works

-£111,976 Work on the roof is a month 
behind schedule due to poor 
weather conditions.

Remaining work is anticipated to 
catch up before the end of the 
financial year.

Highways & Public Protection
Scheme Variation Reason Action Plan

Kirkby to 
Maghull Cycle 
Route

-£272,758 Scheme has been delayed due 
to the protracted time required 
for land acquisitions and wet 
ground conditions causing 
delays on site.

Funding will be carried forward 
to complete the scheme in early 
2021/22 financial year.

A565 Corridor 
Improvements 

-£200,000 Tenders for the scheme were 
less than anticipated and rail 
permissions have been 
problematic leading to delays.

Scope of the project will be 
reviewed, and funding will be 
carried forward to complete in 
early 2021/22 financial year.

Active Travel 
Schemes

-£134,902 Schemes have been under 
review for delivery in the next 
financial year.

Approval is being sought from 
the CA to incorporate funding 
into tranche 2 of Active Travel in 
2021/22.

6.2.3 Due to the impact of the COVID-19 crisis, delivery of schemes during the first six 
months (April to September) was relatively low and the budget has been profiled 
accordingly, similarly the opportunity to conduct large elements of the schools’ 
programme during summer 2020 will also have been lost. Spending has increased 
since the end of quarter two as contractors returned on site to complete scheduled 
works. The budgets will therefore reflect increases in activity later in the year. It 
may also be necessary to reprofile allocations to future years where schemes 
have been delayed and cannot be completed in the current year. These schemes 
will be kept under review and any adjustments to the budgets will be included in 
the first monitoring report to Cabinet in 2021/22.

6.3 Capital Programme Forecast Outturn 2020/21

6.3.1 The current forecast of expenditure against the budget profile to the end of 
2020/21 and the profile of budgets for future years is shown in the table below:

Service Area

Full 
Year 

Budget 
2020/21

Forecast 
Out-turn

Variance 
to 

Budget

Full Year 
Budget for 
Ongoing 
Schemes 
2021/22

Full Year 
Budget for 
Ongoing 
Schemes 
2022/23

£m £m £m £m £m
Adult Social Care 2.923 2.882 -0.041 6.755 0.750
Communities 0.339 0.324 -0.015 1.465 -
Corporate Resources 1.247 1.244 -0.003 4.144 -

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



Economic Growth & Housing 4.648 4.648 - 4.699 -
Education Excellence 3.661 3.591 -0.070 6.015 0.427
Highways & Public Protection 12.881 12.123 -0.758 5.105 -
Locality Services 2.419 2.425 0.006 10.803 1.025
Total Programme 28.118 27.237 -0.881 38.986 2.202

A full list of the capital programme by capital scheme is at appendix A.

6.3.2 Analysis of significant spend variations over budget profile in 2020/21:

Education Excellence
Scheme Variation Reason Action Plan

Linaker Primary 
– Additional 1 
Form Entry 
Classroom

-£59,349 Project is now complete and a 
saving on the scheme has been 
identified.

Surplus resources will be used 
to fund essential works on the 
Schools General Planned 
Maintenance budget.

Highways & Public Protection
Scheme Variation Reason Action Plan

Kirkby to 
Maghull Cycle 
Route

-£140,000 See 3.2 above. Funding will be carried forward 
to complete the scheme in early 
2021/22 financial year.

A565 Corridor 
Improvements 

-£241,000 See 3.2 above. Scope of the project will be 
reviewed, and funding will be 
carried forward to complete the 
in early 2021/22 financial year.

Active Travel 
Schemes

-£406,457 See 3.2 above. Approval is being sought from 
the CA to incorporate funding 
into tranche 2 of Active Travel in 
2021/22.

6.3.3 Schemes will be kept under review, but it is anticipated that due to the limited 
amount of resource available to complete delivery, plus the impact of COVID-19, 
some schemes may have to be rescheduled into 2021/22 financial year. An 
update will be provided on subsequent monitoring reports. With only four months 
of the financial year remaining, achieving the current forecast for the year will be 
challenging hence the comprehensive review each quarter.  This estimate is the 
best available at this time but will be dependent on a number of factors including 
local restrictions.

6.4 Public Sector Decarbonisation Fund (PSDF) – Bootle & Southport Town Hall 
retrofit energy saving works

6.4.1 A bid for £788,087 was submitted to the Public Sector Decarbonisation Fund 
(PSDF) on 11 January 2021 to improve the thermal efficiency of Bootle Town Hall 
and Southport Town hall, via insulation and glazing works. The fund is newly 
created as part of the Government’s response to the Covid 19 ‘build back better’ 

Page 58

Agenda Item 8



programme. Funding is being allocated via a Section 31 agreement in order to 
allocate funding before the end of the financial year.

6.4.2 The total cost of the works (plus contingency) is £788,087. This represents 100% 
of the estimated cost of the works with no matched funding requirement. An 
additional bid of £86,000 for project management has also been made but would 
be funded separately to the Section 31 money.

6.4.3 Cabinet is therefore recommended to approve of a supplementary capital estimate 
of £0.788m for this project to be funded from Section 31 grant allocated by the 
Government.

6.5 Programme Funding

6.5.1 The table below shows how the capital programme will be funding in 2020/21:

Source £m
Grants 21.521
Contributions (incl. Section 106) 0.520
Capital Receipts 1.242
Prudential Borrowing 4.835
Total Programme Funding 28.118

6.5.2 The programme is reviewed on an ongoing basis to confirm the capital resources 
required to finance capital expenditure are in place, the future years programme is 
fully funded, and the level of prudential borrowing remains affordable.

6.5.3 The Executive Director Corporate Resources and Customer Services will continue 
to manage the financing of the programme to ensure the final capital funding 
arrangements secure the maximum financial benefit to the Council.

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX A – Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2022/23

Budget
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23Capital Project

£ £ £
Adult Social Care    
Care Homes - Fire Alarms & Emergency Lighting        102,000                   -                   - 
Core DFG Programme        975,000    1,421,407 750,000                  
Wider Social Care Programme     1,846,439 5,333,271    -                   
Communities    
Crosby Lakeside Watersports            2,217                -                       -
Dunes Splashworld – Essential Repairs - 1,200,000 -
Libraries - Centres of Excellence          83,623       265,088                   - 
Bootle Library          38,749                   -                   - 
S106 - Derby – South Park Hut Extension          50,614                   -                   - 
S106 - St Oswalds – Marion Gardens Play Equipment           3,022                   -                   - 
S106 - Netherton & Orrell – Abbeyfield Park Play Area          11,942                   -                   - 
S106 - Cambridge – Hesketh Park Improvement Works          15,016                   -                   - 
S106 - Netherton & Orrell – Zebra Crossing, Park Ln West          19,540                   -                   - 
S106 - Linacre - Strand Living Wall          33,000                   -                   - 
S106 – Victoria – Victoria Park Play Equip & Surfacing 14,871 - -
S106 – Linacre – North Park Play Equipment 50,000 - -
S106 – Sudell – Moorhey Shops Parking Scheme 16,625 - -
Corporate Resources    
Corporate Maintenance          22,878 2,477,204                   - 
STCC Essential Maintenance     100,000                      1,298,634                   - 
Victoria Baths Essential Works        393,873  147,374                                  - 
St John Stone Site - Infrastructure Works        623,210                   -                   - 
Public Sector Reform – Cost of Change 106,914 220,738 -
Economic Growth & Housing    
Housing Investment (HMRI)          4,500         49,758                   - 
Next Steps Accommodation Programme 90,000 - -
Southport Pier Project        48,993            130,927                   - 
Southport Tree Lights 100,000 - -
Strategic Acquisitions - Land at Bootle   1,398,500 149,000                   - 
Town Centre Fund       -       250,000                   - 
Southport Market Redevelopment 900,000 500,000 - 
Cambridge Road Centre Development 804,165              519,552                   - 
Crosby Lakeside (CLAC) Development     1,000,000      2,100,000                   - 
Strategic Acquisitions – Ainsdale        301,859    1,000,000                   - 
Education Excellence    
Healthy Pupils Fund          26,241                   -                   - 
Schools Programme 2,629,841 4,508,938 401,625
Planned Maintenance        399,929 683,138 -
Special Educational Needs & Disabilities        605,075    822,662 25,000                  
Highways and Public Protection    
Accessibility        80,653 206,667                                      - 

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



2020/21
£

2021/22
£

2022/23
£

Completing Schemes/Retentions          20,000 - -
Healthy Lifestyles     2,500,000      560,200                   - 
Road Safety        15,000 125,000                   - 
A565 Route Management and Parking     780,000       1,280,000                   - 
Strategic Planning 318,000 55,000 -
Traffic Management and Parking     815,000 289,550                   - 
Emergency Active Travel Fund 590,457 750,000   -
Port Access 149,874 29,126
Highway Maintenance     3,246,086      1,579,347                   - 
Bridges & Structures        203,000         30,670                   - 
Drainage        50,000                   -                   - 
Street Lighting Maintenance        300,000                   -                   - 
UTC Maintenance        193,660                   -                   - 
Winter Service Facility     2,632,000                   -                   - 
Major Transport Schemes    987,500 200,000                             - 
Locality Services    
Burials & Cremation Insourcing - Vehicles & Equipment        45,000 90,210                   - 
Formby Strategic Flood Risk Management Programme -         43,851                   - 
Merseyside Groundwater Study - 31,508                   -
Four Acres Multi Agency Flood Options -         1,570                   - 
CERMS        458,213       220,000                   - 
Natural Flood Risk Management          10,000                   -                   - 
The Pool & Nile Watercourses          38,179                   -                   - 
Crosby Flood & Coastal Scheme        59,939  45,061        785,839 
Seaforth & Litherland Strategic Flood Risk -        30,000                   - 
Hall Road & Alt Training Bank – Rock Armour          6,000         44,000                   - 
Ainsdale & Birkdale Land Drainage Scheme          4,000 25,340                                    - 
Surface Water Management Plan        39,962 94,516                   - 
Surface Water Modelling & Mapping          10,020 10,000                                    - 
Small Watercourse Works          15,000                   -                   - 
Water Level Monitoring Pilot 13,000 5,000 -
Hightown Coastal Protection Interim Options 10,000 - -
Parks Schemes        64,420     218,147                   - 
Tree Planting Programme          85,750         38,600        126,783 
Golf Driving Range Developments        18,030       518,330                   - 
Ainsdale Coastal Gateway 20,000 332,000 -
Green Sefton – Plant & Machinery 177,000 123,000 -
Vehicle Replacement Programme     1,344,000    7,281,905        113,000 
Wheeled Bins - 1,650,000 -

TOTAL PROGRAMME 28,118,379 38,986,289 2,202,247

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Domiciliary Care Contracts
	5 Savio Salesian College - Approval of Legal Documentation for Academy Conversion
	6 Afghan MOD Scheme
	7 New Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation Duty
	8 Financial Management 2020/21 to 2023/24 and Framework for Change 2020 - Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2020/21 including the Financial Impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 Budget - March Update

